


























of funds - and (business activities/enterprise funds) - use 
different accounting approaches: 

• Governmental funds: Most of the City's basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those
funds, and the balances left at year-end that may be available for future
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method described as

accounting. This accounting method (basis) measures the
availability of cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted
into cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed 

of the City's general government operations, and the basic services it
provides to residents and visitors of the City. Governmental fund information
helps you to determine what financial resources are available to be spent in
the near future to finance the City's programs. We describe the relationship
( or differences) between governmental ( reported in the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and the governmental in a
reconciliation ( see pages 15 and 1 7).

• Proprietary funds: When the City charges customers for the full cost for the
services it provides, those services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported
in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The City's
enterprise funds (Sewer Operations) are the business-type activities that we
report in the government-wide statements, but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the City of Colfax, assets exceeded liabilities by 
$22,681,312 at the close of the current fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, street, sewer and storm drain systems, buildings and park assets, machinery 
and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. 
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debts, it should be noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The City's combined net position for the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018 are 
summarized (Table 1), as follows: 

Item 4A



Governmental Business 

Activities Activities Total 

Current and 

other assets 

Non-current and Capital assets 

Pension Contributions made 

subsequent to measurement date 

Long-term 

liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Unamortized gains on pension 

investment 

Net Investment in 

capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Governmental Activities 

Item 4A

















Item 4A





Item 4A









Item 4A





Item 4A

31







Item 4A





Item 4A













Item 4A





CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Investment policy: California statutes authorize cities to invest idle or surplus funds in a variety of credit 
instruments as provided for in the California Government Code, Section 53600, Chapter 4 - Financial 
Affairs. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California 
Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, 
credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage Investment 
Maturity Of Portfolio In One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury obligations 5 years None None 
U.S. Agency securities 5 years None None 
Local agency bonds None None 10% 
Mortgage-back securities None 20% None 
Bankers acceptances 180 days 40% 30% 
High grade commercial paper 270 days 40% 10% 
Negotiable certificates of deposit None None None 
LAIF None None 
Medium term corporate notes 5 years 30% 5% 
Repurchase Agreements 365 days 20% None 
Money market fund None None None 

The City complied with the prov1s1ons of California Government Code pertaining to the types of 
investments held, institutions in which deposits were made and security requirements. The City will 
continue to monitor compliance with applicable statutes pertaining to public deposits and investments. 

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The City's investment in LAIF has an 
average maturity of 1 73 days. 

Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issue of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. The City's only investment is in LAIF, which is not rated. 

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government 
Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The 
California Governmental Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated 
under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities 
in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. 
California law also allows financial institutions to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. At June 30, 2019, the 
carrying amount of the City's deposits was $304,309 and the balance in financial institutions was 

$309,669. Of the balance in financial institutions, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance 

30 

Item 4A









Item 4A















CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The 
following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plans, calculated 
using the discount rate for the Plans, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I -percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

1 % Decrease 6.15% 
Net Pension Liability $ 197,712 

Current Discount Rate 7.15% 
Net Pension Liability $ 92,380 

1 % Increase 8.15% 
Net Pension Liability $ 5,428 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

NOTE H - INSURANCE 

The City is a member of the Small Cities Organized Risk Effort (SCORE) with other northern California 
cities. SCORE is a joint powers authority organized in accordance with Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, 
Title I of the California Government Fund Programs. The purpose is to create a common pool of funds to 
be used to meet obligations of the parties to provide workers' compensation benefits for their employees 
and to provide liability insurance. SCORE provides claims processing administrative services, risk 
management services and actuarial studies. A member from each city governs SCORE. The City of 
Colfax council members do not have significant oversight responsibility, since they evenly share all 
factors of responsibility with the other cities. The City does not retain the risk of loss. However, ultimate 
liability for payment of claims and insurance premiums resides with member cities. SCORE is 
empowered to make supplemental assessments as needed to eliminate deficit positions of member cities. 
If SCORE becomes insolvent, the City is responsible only to the extent of any deficiency in its equity 
balance. SCORE establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including 
future claims settlement expenses) that have been reported but not settled, plus estimates of claims that 
have been incurred but not reported. Because actual claims costs depend on various factors, the claims 
liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce 
current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and social factors. 
A provision for inflation is implicit in the calculation of estimated future claims costs. Adjustments to 
claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made. 

41 

Item 4A

55







Item 4A



Item 4A



























To the City Council 
Page 3 

the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated December 10, 2019. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention oflndependent Auditors 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to 
our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) listed in the table 
of contents, which are RSI that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the 
RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the Combining and Individual Statements, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that 
the information complies with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

December 10, 2019 

Item 4A

72











APPENDED JOURNAL ENTRIES 

Item 4A











Bianchini Capital Improvement Fund Expenditures 

ADA compliance in C wing 

3/18/2019 - Bisbee Northcott (ADA compliance) 

C4 Restroom Hot water heater 

ADA compliance main gym entrance 

Health and Safety 

2/6/2019 - Flying Squirrel / Emergency Tree Removal 

4/15/2019 - Zora / Diesel Tank Fence and Gate 

4/15/2019 - Steve Conklin / Ball field fencing (kids safety issue) 

$ 181.00 

$ 

$ 1950.00 

$ 199.39 

$ 1761.23 

82











DATE:  December 23, 2019 

TO:   Wes Heathcock, City Manager and Larry Wing, City Engineer, Colfax CA 

FROM:  Doug Dove, President  

SUBJECT:  Proposed Sewer EDU Adjustments 

MEMORANDUM 

Background: The City of Colfax recently implemented a multi-year sewer rate increase.  The 
current sewer rates are $133 per month per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) as defined in 
“Appendix A”.  Several commercial sewer customers have recently complained about their EDU 
assignments and overall sewer costs.  The City maintains a list of customers and their assigned 
EDUs for billing purposes.  For the City as a whole, the sewer system serves 1,204 EDUs as 
shown in Table 1.  Commercial customers account for about 260 EDUs or 22% of the City’s 
total EDUs.  A survey of the current sewer rates for the surrounding communities is attached for 
information.  The survey also includes current population estimates for each community 
surveyed.   

Recommendation:  The City of Colfax should consider making some minor administrative 
adjustments to its sewer EDU definitions in “Appendix A”.  This can be done at the staff and 
City Council level without triggering a new Prop 218 noticing process.  By doing this, the City 
can improve the equity of the sewer rates and allow those who believe they are not getting a fair 
EDU assignment to request a re-rating.  The recommended adjustments to Appendix A include 
the following: 

¶ A minimum of 1 EDU is assigned per sewer service connection/parcel unless otherwise noted in
Appendix A.

¶ Ancillary uses should not be subject to a minimum EDU assignment.
¶ The minimum EDU assignment should include the first 1,000 sq. ft. building area, unless

otherwise noted.
¶ The existing category of Additional “Granny House” should be renamed Accessory Dwelling

Unit and the EDU assignments should be based on square footage to comply with recent state law
changes.

The proposed changes are noted in red on the attached Appendix A. 

By making these changes, the EDU assignment process will be more equitable.  Customers that 
request a re-rating based on the new Appendix A will have to live with the results which may 
cause their EDU rating to go up or down.  Customers that do not request a re-rating would keep 
their current (historical) EDU assignments. 





Table 1. City of Colfax Sewer EDU Summary

Current
2018 Rate 2019

Cutomer Class Study EDUs EDUs

Single-Family Residential 818.20 552.10
Multi-Family Residential 21.40 280.00
Church 15.00 15.00
Commercial 202.77 259.47
Government 8.08 10.08
Schools 58.30 58.30
Railroad Property 35.50 30.00
Other 1.80

Total EDUs 1,161.05 1,204.95













Table 2.  City of Colfax Updated EDU Calculation Examples

Example 1 

Use User Group
Square

Footage

Primary Use
Base Rate 

EDU

Primary Use
Additional 

Footage EDU

Ancillary Use
Additional 

Footage EDU

Total 
EDU's

Office
217
General Office 1,500 1.0 0.1 N/A 1.1

Antique Store
221
Retail Store 560 N/A N/A 0.3 0.3

Drug Store
221
Retail Store 750 N/A N/A 0.4 0.4

Multi-Family Residence
120
Multi-Family N/A N/A 0.8 0.8

Multi-Family Residence
120
Multi-Family N/A N/A 0.8 0.8

Bar
204
Bars & Taverns 1,000 N/A N/A 1.0 1.0

Take-out Restaurant

220 - 1
Take-out
Restaurant 900 N/A N/A 0.9 0.9

Total 4,710 5.3

Example 2

Use User Group
Square

Footage

Primary Use
Base Rate 

EDU

Primary Use
Additional 

Footage EDU

Ancillary Use
Additional 

Footage EDU

Total 
EDU's

Bakery
203
Bakeries 1,600 2.0 1.0 N/A 3.0

Office
217
Office Buildings 500 N/A N/A 0.1 0.1

Beauty Salon
211 Health Studios, Beauty 
Salons, Spas & Gyms 600 N/A N/A 0.6 0.6

Medical Office
215 Medical & Dental 
Offices 1,000 N/A N/A 0.5 0.5

Full-Service Restaurant

220 - 2
Full-Service
Restaurant 900 N/A N/A 1.8 1.8

Total 4,600 6.0

Example 3

Use User Group
Square

Footage

Primary Use
Base Rate 

EDU

Primary Use
Additional 

Footage EDU

Ancillary Use
Additional 

Footage EDU

Total 
EDU's

Single-Family Residence
110
Single-Family Dwellings N/A 1.0 N/A N/A 1.0

Accessory Dwelling Unit
110.1
Accessory Dwelling Unit 500 N/A N/A 0.4 0.4

Total 1.4

Mixed Use Development on Single Sewer Connection/Account

Mixed Use Development on Single Sewer Connection/Account

Single-Family + 500 sq ft Accessory Dwelling Unit 





environment, the action is not subject to CEQA.  CEQA Guidelines, Section 15061(b)(3).  It can be seen 

with certainty that adoption of this ordinance and its provisions cannot possibly have a significant effect 

on the environment. 

Section 5. Effective Date 

This Ordinance, and all of its provisions, shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption and 

shall, within 15 days after its adoption, be published or posted in accordance with Section 36933 

of the Government Code of the State of California with the names of those City Council 

members voting for and against it.  

The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a duly held regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Colfax held on the 8th day of January, 2020, and passed at a duly held regular meeting 

of the City Council held on the 22nd day of January, 2020, by the following vote:  

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________ 

Marnie Mendoza, Mayor  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

_______________________________ _____________________________ 

Alfred Cabral  Jaclyn Collier 

City Attorney  City Clerk  

97









Base Add'l

216 1.0 1.0

217 1.0 0.2

Note

218 1.0 1.0

Note

219 2.0 0.2

220 Base EDU min to 1000 sq. ft., (if stand alone), plus:

220.1 Take-out Only 1.0 1.0 1 EDU per 1000 sq. ft. additional gross floor area

Full Service 2.0 2.0 2 EDU per 1000 sq. ft. additional gross floor space

221 1.0 0.5

Note

222

222.1 Elementary 1.0 1.0

222.2 Secondary 2.0 1.0

Note

223 1.0 0.1 1 EDU minimum plus 0.1 EDU per pump

Note

Mortuaries 1 EDU minimum, plus 1 EDU per "slumber room."

Ancillary
Uses (1)

Examples: Hospital (including laboratory / forensics preparation area) (212). 

Office Buildings 1 EDU minimum to 1000 sq. ft. (if stand alone); plus 0.2 EDU per 
additional 1000 sq. ft. gross floor area. 

Ancillary
Uses (1)

Examples: Complex may provide common facilities: pool, gym with showers (211); cafeteria (220)

May have high chemical (cleaning product) loading. Rapid change in tenancy can dramatically impact
sewer characteristics.

Places of Worship 2 EDU per facility, up to 10,000 sq. ft. gross floor
space, plus 0.2 EDU per each additional 1000
sq. ft. 1 EDU additional per each residence on site. 

User
Group
Code

Main
Group

Subcategory

EDU Rate
Factor EDU Basis

Ancillary
Uses (1)

Examples: Full kitchen, for food preparation & service equivalent to "Restaurant" (220); Community Care
rooms rented (120).

Parks & Fairgrounds 1 EDU minimum, 1 EDU per restroom
("comfort station") complex: (men's, women's and 
janitorial supply). 

Ancillary
Uses (1)

Examples: Trailer / RV spaces (120); Spa / Gym w/ Showers (211); Halls, Auditoriums (210) permanent
food service area(s), as equivalent of "Restaurant" (220); Equipment service, storage and/or maintenance
yards (209). Sanitary dump stations = 1 EDU each; Pool. 

May include confined animal facilities; if sewered, consider additional impacts. 

Retail Stores

Ancillary
Uses (1)

Examples: Complex may include coffee shop, cafeteria or Restaurant (220).

Rapid change in tenancy, as with Office Buildings, can result in dramatic change in sewage

1 EDU minimum to 1000 sq. ft.; 0.5 EDU per each additional 1000 
sq. ft. gross floor area

Restaurants

Ancillary
Uses (1)

Examples: Bar (204); Market (214); Retail "gift shop" (221).

Service Stations

Ancillary
Uses (1)

Examples: Car Wash (206); Garage, Equipment service / repair (209); Market or "mini-mart" (214); Food;
service (220); Industrial: "Paint & Body Shop" (400).

Production and release of hazardous wastes to sewer very possible: may require mitigation. 

Schools

Ancillary
Uses (2)

Not applicable: Ancillary facilities weighed in rate factor. 

"ADA" = Average Daily Attendance, or the actual number of students attending class. 

1 EDU minimum, 1 EDU per 20 students (ADA)
plus Staff. 
2 EDU minimum, 1 EDU per 10 students (ADA)
plus Staff. 









Councilmember Lomen requested clarification on a timeframe for a new ordinance. 

SCI Consultant, Kyle Tanard, stated what the proposed fees cover has been submitted to Council. He 

stated it includes three meetings with stake holders, and one meeting with Council. Mr. Tankard 

explained the timeframe, starting in January, would be approximately one to three months, 

depending on the direction Council wishes to take, but that changes can be made relatively quickly. 

City Manager Heathcock and SCI Consultant Tankard had a discussion about the proposal not 

including setbacks and whether or not zoning would need to be considered, zoning for cultivation, 

growing, commercial use and whether or not those costs were included in the contract proposal 

from SCI Consulting. Mr. Tankard confirmed they were and explained the items included in the 

ÃÏÎÔÒÁÃÔ ÅÓÔÉÍÁÔÅ ÐÒÅÓÅÎÔÅÄ ÔÏ #ÏÕÎÃÉÌ ÉÎÃÌÕÄÉÎÇ Αςȟπππ ÐÅÒ ÍÅÅÔÉÎÇ ÁÎÄ ÔÈÅ ÄÉÆÆÅÒÅÎÔ ȰÐÁÓÓȱ ÏÒ 

phases of the contract. 

Mr. Dion requested to confirm whether or not fewer meetings would result in a lesser fee. 

Mr. Tankard agreed and added that the City would not be locked into a set number of meetings. 

City Manager Heathcock requested clarification on how long the meetings would be for to which Mr. 

Tankard answered anywhere from one to three hours, and the number quoted at the bottom of the 

proposal contract is based on the maximum hourly rate charged by SCI Consulting. 

City Manager Heathcock inquired about other questions regarding the proposed timeline of one to 

three months, resulting in May being the month for the item to be voted on by Council. 

Mr. Tankard stated the amendment would have to go to planning. 

Councilmember Burruss inquired about when permits would be issued if approved in May. 

#ÉÔÙ !ÔÔÏÒÎÅÙ #ÁÂÒÁÌ ÅØÐÌÁÉÎÅÄ ÔÈÅ σπ ÄÁÙ ȰÃÏÏÌÉÎÇ ÏÆÆ ÐÅÒÉÏÄȱȢ 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza inquired as to whether or not SCI Consulting was new. 

City Manager Heathcock explained SCI Consulting replaced HDL. 

Discussion had between Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza and City Manager Heathcock regarding the 

current cost. 

Discussion had between Councilmember Burruss, Ms. Dion, and Rich regarding business licenses, 

current population, and current demand for medical cannabis. 

Councilmember Burruss talked about the need to explain to the public where the funds have gone 

and where they will go, regarding contract to possibly amend the current cannabis ordinance. 

Councilmember Lomen discussed the issue that once Council decided to allow one cannabis license 

in the City, it became their responsibility to keep up to date and invest funds to maintain compliance 

with regulations set by California and that these would constantly be changing. 

Councilmember Burruss stated the need to be proactive when changing the current ordinance, if 

done, to allow for easier additions and/or changes if needed to maintain compliance with the 

California regulations. 



















 

City of Colfax 2 

Staff Report January 8, 2020 Cash Summary Report ɀ November 2019 
 

 

Partner agreements.  The City has received all Developer share of costs, and $270,000 of 

these funds are in Fund 210 ï Mitigation Fees Road projects and are budgeted to be used 

for the project (to be transferred as necessary at project completion) 

 

Attachments 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 

a. Cash Analysis ï Balance 

b. Expenses by Month 

c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  

a. Cash Summary 

b. Cash Transactions Report ï by individual fund 

c. Check Register Report - Accounts Payable 

d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

 









p 

118



I 2 2 I 2 2 I 2 2 I 2 2









































City of Colfax 1 

Resolution __-2020 SCI Consulting Group Contract ï Commercial Cannabis 

Ordinance and Fee Development 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution Ο __-2020 
 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH SCI CONSULTING GROUP FOR COMMERCIAL CANNABIS 

ORDINANCE AND FEE DEVELOPMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $25,000. 

 

 WHEREAS, City Council provided direction at the November 13, 2019 meeting to 
provide additional information at a future commercial cannabis workshop; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed staff to bring forward a contract with SCI 

Consulting Group to develop the necessary commercial cannabis ordinances and fees at the 

December 11, 2019 Commercial Cannabis Workshop.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax 

authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with SCI Consulting Group for commercial 

cannabis ordinance and fee development in an amount not to exceed $25,000. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED 

at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 8th day of January 

2020, by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:   

______________________________ 

        Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:                                                                                                                                 

 

___________________________________ 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

 

 

 

  

Item 6G







S  Consulting Group Consultant Agreement Page 3 

Section 6. Insurance. 

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  

A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance
and Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative,
Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as
long as the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the
California Labor Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are
authorized by the City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as
required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's
employees.  All Workers' Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the
provision that the insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until
thirty (30) days prior written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The
Workers' Compensation insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the
insurance company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City and
its elected or appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees for losses paid
under the terms of such policy which arise from the Services performed by the
insured for the City.

B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury
and property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its
subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection
with the Services.  The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general
liability form and include a broad form comprehensive general liability
endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these
requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior
written authorization from the City.

C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily
injury and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for
each occurrence.

D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance
policy shall be endorsed with the following provisions:

Item 6G





S  Consulting Group Consultant Agreement Page 5 

H. Termination of Insurance. If the City receives notification that Consultant's
insurance will be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits,
and if the Consultant does not provide for either the reinstatement of that
insurance or for the furnishing of alternate insurance containing all of the terms
and provisions specified above prior to the termination of that insurance, City may
either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the required
insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof
from compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant
for Services rendered under the terms of this Agreement.

Section 7. Subcontracts. 

Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written 
authorization of City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully 
responsible to the City and third parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to 
which the Services or any portion thereof are subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall create any contractual relationship between City and any subcontractor, nor shall it 
create any obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment of any monies 
due to any such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 

Section 8. Assignment. 

Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City's 
prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this 
Agreement without the City's prior written consent shall be void.  

Section 9. Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those 
matters contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 
effect with respect to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified 
or altered except in writing signed by both parties.  

Section 10. Jurisdiction. 

This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
California.  Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
Superior Court of the State of California with venue in Placer County, California.  

Section 11. Suspension of Services. 

Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the 
Services if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make 
normal progress of the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible.  Upon written City 
approval to suspend performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services 
shall be extended by the number of days performance of the Services is suspended.  

Section 12. Termination of Services. 

Item 6G







S  Consulting Group Consultant Agreement Page 8 

A. Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary
contacts of the parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any
dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following
provisions.  Any party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party
pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice
by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall
meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary
contact, or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the
dispute, shall attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day
thereto.  If any dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to
this Agreement shall have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for
in the subparagraph B below.

B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved
after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral
mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the
Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS").  If
within five days after the meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the
selection of a neutral mediator, then the first available retired judge or justice at
the Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator.  The parties
agree to commit to at least one full day to the mediation process.  Additionally, to
expedite the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties
agree to each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators,
including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within 30
days after the mediation has been confirmed.

C. If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall
mediate the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their
dispute.  If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to
submit selection of an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding
on the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the
then active list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the JAMS.
The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the provisions of the California
Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In
such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1
shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement.

D. This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If
there is no Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City
shall be used instead of a Sacramento office.

Section 19. Severability. 

Item 6G




























	Online Agenda 1-8-20
	Agenda Packet Draft
	Agenda Top
	Agenda Beginning
	04A - Audit Report Presentation
	04B - Bianchini Report SVCC Annual Update
	05A - First Reading for the Sewer Ordinance 475 Appendix A Language Clarification
	Sewer Ordinance 475 Appendix A Language Clarification Staff Report
	200108 Sewer Ordinance 475 Appendix A Language Clarification BWA Colfax Sewer EDU Recommendations
	12-23-19 BWA memo - Colfax Sewer EDU Recommendations.pdf
	Table 1 - Colfax EDU Summary.pdf
	Sheet1

	Sewer Rate Survey.pdf
	Chart1

	Proposed January 2020 Clarifications to EDU Appendix A.pdf
	Appendix A

	Mixed Use EDU Calculation Examples.pdf
	EDU Examples


	Ordinance Complete - Final


	06A - Minutes Special Meeting-Workshop
	12-11-19 Special Meeting Minutes - Cannabis Workshop - Final


	Agenda End
	06B - Minutes Regular Meeting 12-11-19
	06C - Cash Summary November 2019
	Staff Report Cash Summary - November 2019
	SR Attachment 1 - Cash Summary Nov 19
	SR Attachment 2 - Cash Summary Nov 19

	06D - Sales Tax Analysis QE 9-30-19
	Sales Tax Analysis QE 09-30-19 - Staff Report
	Sales Tax Charts QE 09.30.19

	06E - Shadow Wood Place Subdivision Amended Final Map Approval
	Shadow Wood Development Approval of Amended Final Map Staff Report - Final
	Shadow Wood Development Approval of Amended Final Map Resolution
	SHADOW WOOD FINAL MAP.2019.12.30
	A. Final Subdivision Map Bk M P 84(2)

	06F - LED Lighting Upgrade - PG&E On-Bill-Financing
	PG&E On Bill Finance - Staff Report
	PG&E On Bill Finance - Reso
	Financial Summary  (OBF) - Attachment 2

	06G - SCI Consulting Group Commercial Cannabis
	Commercial Cannabis- SCI Consulting Contract Staff Report
	Commercial Cannabis- SCI Consulting Contract Resolution
	SCI Consulting Group Consultant Agreement
	SCI Consulting Group Contract Exhibit A

	09A - South Auburn Street Hotel Roundabout Fee Reimbursement Agreement
	Best Western Fair Share Fee Split Staff Report - Final
	Best Western Mitigation Fee Split  Resolution - Final

	09B - Mitigation Fee Ad Hoc Committee SR
	09C - Committee Assignments
	Staff Report Council Committee Assignments
	2020 Committee Assignment Descriptions - Final
	2020 Proposed Committee Assignment List - Final
	2020 Ad Hoc Committee Assignment List - Final






